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We are pleased to present to you our 2020 legislative report which is mandated by Minnesota 
Statutes, Chapter 473J.09 Subd. 13, and requires the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority 
(Authority) to report annually to the chairs and ranking minority members of the legislative 
committees with jurisdiction over state government finance on the following:  
 

1. Any recommended increases in the rate or dollar amount of tax;  
2. Any recommended increases in the debt of the Authority;  
3. The overall work and role of the Authority;  
4. The Authority's proposed operating and capital budgets; and  
5. The Authority's implementation of the operating and capital budgets. 

 
Per Minnesota Statutes 3.197, a report to the legislature must contain, at the beginning of the 
report, the cost of preparing the report, including any costs incurred by another agency or another 
level of government. 
 
This report was prepared by U.S. Bank Stadium staff and no costs were incurred by another 
agency or another level of government. 
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The following information includes the Authority’s responses listed in the order reflected on page 
one of this document, as well as an overview of our organization and stadium operations, major 
accomplishments and achievements, plans for the future, the 2020-2021 Operating and Capital 
Budgets, and the Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
 
1. Any recommended increases in the rate or dollar amount of tax? 
The Authority does not recommend an increase in the rate or dollar amount of tax. 
 
2. Any recommended increases in the debt of the Authority? 
The Authority does not recommend an increase in the debt of the Authority. 
 
3. Overall work and role of the Authority 
In May 2012, the Minnesota legislature established the Authority as a public body and political 
subdivision of the state.  Per Minnesota Statutes, 473J.07, Subd. 2 the Authority is comprised of 
five board members who serve four-year terms.  The governor of the State of Minnesota appoints 
the chair and two additional members, and the mayor of the City of Minneapolis appoints two 
members.  Governor Mark Dayton appointed Michael Vekich as the Chair in 2017, and he was 
reappointed by Governor Tim Walz in 2019. In 2018, the Board appointed James Farstad as its 
Executive Director.  The Board sets policy for the administration of the Authority. The Executive 
Director directs the Authority’s operations and carries out the policies established by the Board. 
 
Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority Board  
Michael Vekich, Chair, Appointed by the Governor of the State of Minnesota 
Barbara Butts Williams, Vice Chair, Appointed by the Mayor of the City of Minneapolis 
Tony Sertich, Secretary & Treasurer, Appointed by the Governor of the State of Minnesota 
William McCarthy, Appointed by the Mayor of the City of Minneapolis 
Angela Burns Finney, Appointed by the Governor of the State of Minnesota 
 
Mission and Core Values 
When the Authority was created its mission was to provide for the construction, financing, and 
long-term use of the Stadium and the related stadium infrastructure as a venue for professional 
football and a broad range of other civic, community, athletic, educational, cultural, and 
commercial activities. Construction of U.S. Bank Stadium began in 2013. During construction, the 
Authority acted as the Stadium’s developer and was responsible for construction oversight and 
management.  
 
When construction was completed and U.S. Bank Stadium opened in July 2016, the Authority’s 
mission changed as it now had oversight responsibility for stadium operations. It hired SMG (now 
known as ASM Global) to manage and operate the Stadium, and to oversee the Stadium’s two 
security vendors. Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services was hired to provide premium 
catering services in the six clubs and the suites, and food and beverage services in the concession 
stands, various bars, portable carts, and various vending locations.   
 



3 
 
 

 

In the fall of 2020, the Authority developed a new logo for the organization to promote its 
mission, purpose, and core values with the community and all partners of U.S. Bank Stadium. The 
Authority’s core values include Integrity, Stewardship, Equity and Community Focus, 
Accountability, and Innovation and Responsiveness. There is a shared commitment to 
implementing a proactive outreach to diverse communities and targeted businesses in order to 
promote employment and economic opportunities at the Stadium. The mission is stated as 
follows: “We commit to creating memorable experiences through service excellence while 
providing a safe, world class sports and entertainment environment for all.”   
 
U.S. BANK STADIUM’S MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN 2020 
Under the Authority’s oversight, ASM Global is responsible for operating U.S. Bank Stadium. ASM 
Global’s operation of U.S. Bank Stadium includes facility management, booking, sales, marketing, 
guest services, cleaning, operations, and oversight of the security contractors.  
 
In 2020, U.S. Bank Stadium was scheduled to host many public, private, and corporate events, 
including the 2020 NCAA DI Wrestling Championships. With the impact of the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19) pandemic, the Stadium was restricted from hosting events for much of the 2020 
calendar year. In total, the Stadium welcomed 78,996 guests at 30 events in 2020, compared to 
over 1.3 million guests and 200 events in 2019. The following are highlights of the Stadium’s 
fourth year of operations: 
 
AWARDS 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
the Authority with the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The Certificate 
of Achievement is a national award that recognizes conformance with the highest standards for 
preparation of state and local government financial reports. This is the seventh year that the 
Authority received this prestigious award.  
 
SAFETY Act Designation 
In May 2020, U.S. Bank Stadium became one of the few NFL stadiums to be awarded the full 
SAFETY Act Designation by the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) with an expiration date 
of May 2025. The strength of U.S. Bank Stadium’s security program is credited for this 
achievement. The SAFETY Act Designation will continue to position U.S. Bank Stadium as a leader 
in the sports, events, and venue management industries. 
 
EVENTS 
Community Events  
With leadership from the Authority, ASM Global prioritizes hosting community events to ensure 
the facility is open, accessible, and welcoming to all. In January and February, U.S. Bank Stadium 
hosted seven days of Winter Warm-Up, the community inline skating and indoor running 
program. The Stadium also hosted 92 collegiate baseball games in February and March, 
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representing the University of Minnesota and other divisions throughout the Upper Midwest 
Region. While the Minnesota State High School League football and soccer championships, along 
with proms and graduations, were scheduled to be hosted by U.S. Bank Stadium in 2020, these 
high school events were unable to occur due to gathering restrictions.  
 
Consumer Shows and Motorsports Events 
U.S. Bank Stadium has proven to be an ideal setting for consumer shows, incorporating a one-of-
a-kind experience for promoters, guests, and vendors. The Minneapolis Home and Remodeling 
Show returned for a successful three-day event in January. An annual family-friendly motorsports 
event, Monster Jam, played to a sold-out crowd at U.S. Bank Stadium in mid-February.  
 
NCAA Wrestling Championships 
In March 2020, U.S. Bank Stadium was positioned to be the first NFL stadium to host the NCAA 
DI Wrestling Championships. The additional space of moving the event operation from an arena 
to an NFL setting would allow for an improved student athlete experience from start to finish. 
With significant increased capacity from an arena setting, it also would have been the first time 
the event was publicly available for single-day ticket sales. Stadium Partners planned for two 
years for this championship event and it was cancelled one week prior to the opening day of 
competition. The Authority and ASM Global are proud of the work that was put in to make this 
event possible and are hopeful that U.S. Bank Stadium may have an opportunity to host this 
championship in future years.  
 
Future Events  
Each year ASM Global consistently books a diverse event mix for U.S. Bank Stadium, fulfilling the 
purpose of facility to be maximized as a multi-purpose venue for all Minnesotans to enjoy. These 
events have tremendous economic benefits for the State and bring a multitude of opportunities 
for Minnesotans to work and play. In a typical year, thousands of visitors from all over the world 
travel to experience events at U.S. Bank Stadium.  
 
Although the COVID-19 pandemic paused the ability for gatherings and events to occur in 2020, 
ASM Global has actively prepared a robust calendar for when events may return to U.S. Bank 
Stadium. The following is a sample of the events planned for U.S. Bank Stadium in the 2021 
calendar year: 

 Minnesota Vikings NFL Home Football Games 
 Five Major Concerts 
 Minnesota State High School League Football and Soccer Championships 
 High School and Collegiate Baseball Games 
 Youth Sporting Events 
 Tradeshows, Galas, Conferences, Corporate Meetings, and Private Events 
 U.S. Bank Stadium Tours 
 Winter Warm-Up (Inline Skating and Indoor Running Program) 
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ASM Global also promotes U.S. Bank Stadium for future, large-scale bid events in close 
collaboration with Meet Minneapolis and Minnesota Sports and Events (MNSE). The bidding 
process for mega-events begins several years in advance and is a community-wide effort. ASM 
Global works closely with these community partners to promote Minnesota as a premier 
entertainment destination and secure future activity for U.S. Bank Stadium.  
 
PROGRAMS 
U.S. Bank Stadium Tours 
The U.S. Bank Stadium tour program is a popular attraction for both residents and visitors of 
Minnesota, welcoming over 5,300 guests on 335 tours in 2020 prior to the shutdown. Tour 
package offerings included a 90-minute, guided tour option for individuals, groups, events, and 
classrooms. The educational tour program offers two options of focus on either facility and sports 
management career development or sustainability.  
 
Sustainability  
Overall, ASM Global continues to improve waste diversion and energy efficiencies, finding 
innovative ways to continue to refine the daily operations and event-specific needs. In 2019, U.S. 
Bank Stadium was certified LEED Platinum for Operations and Maintenance. Stadium partners 
continue to reduce the Stadium’s carbon footprint throughout the operation, including in the 
areas of water reduction, waste reduction/diversion, energy efficiency, sustainable purchasing, 
and the promotion of alternative transportation. 
 
VenueShield 
In June 2020, ASM Global implemented the VenueShield program at U.S. Bank Stadium in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. This worldwide Environmental Hygiene Program was 
created by ASM Global in partnership with public health officials and leading medical experts to 
enhance venue management procedures and provide the highest standards of cleanliness and 
safety. VenueShield offers comprehensive coverage in the areas of environmental hygiene, 
workforce safety, customer journey, food safety, public awareness, and technology.   
 
VenueShield has prepared U.S. Bank Stadium to reopen and safely welcome guests and 
employees back to the venue. ASM Global has carefully planned a return to the workplace 
incorporating VenueShield protocols and has used the VenueShield best practices to inform 
planning for future events. As part of the VenueShield program, ASM Global will provide 
promoters and event organizers with the highlights of the Stadium’s preparedness plan. ASM 
Global will also require a health and safety plan from each promoter or event organizer prior to 
hosting an event at U.S. Bank Stadium.  
 
The VenueShield program will continue to be developed as best practices for health and safety 
evolve surrounding public gatherings, events, and venue management. 
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CONSTRUCTION CLOSEOUT 
U.S. Bank Stadium is receiving a completely new, enhanced exterior enclosure through a 
mediated agreement between the Authority and the companies associated with the design, 
engineering, and construction of the Stadium. The Authority has exceptionally high expectations 
for U.S. Bank Stadium and the performance of the facility over the course of its lifetime. The 
Stadium’s exterior enclosure experienced some wind damage and water issues following the 
construction of the building. As stewards of the public’s investment in U.S. Bank Stadium, the 
Authority questioned whether the original enclosure system would perform its necessary 
function over the life of the building. All parties agreed it was in the Authority’s best interest to 
replace the original exterior enclosure with a superior system to what is currently in place. 
 
The cost of the new enclosure system is paid through a mediated agreement, which is funded by 
the eight companies associated with the design, engineering and construction of U.S. Bank 
Stadium, and their associated insurance companies. No additional public dollars are required 
beyond those planned and reserved for the original construction of the Stadium. 
 
In 2020, phase one of the enclosure replacement was completed. Phase two of the enclosure 
replacement is scheduled to begin in February 2021.  
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 
The following major capital and concession capital improvements were made to U.S. Bank 
Stadium during its fourth year of operations: 
  
COVID-19 Related Enhancements 
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, new disinfection protocols and physical distancing 
requirements were enacted, requiring some specific enhancements in technology and 
equipment. These enhancements include: 

 the GreenZapr machine, a grooming attachment that disinfects the turf playing surface 
(synthetic fibers and pellet/sand mixer filling) using UV-C light, 

 partitions placed in production, press, media, security, and break room spaces to provide 
a distancing barrier for individuals in their respective working locations, and 

 UV-C light boxes used to disinfect production equipment that requires a shared use 
between events such as headsets and microphones.   

  
Storm Water Meter Monitoring 
Storm water meters were enhanced, and cabling was installed to connect into the building 
management system. Where staff previously had to read meter data in-person and record 
manually for permit reporting, now data is automatically captured and archived for review. 
 
Concession Stand Monitors 
Static signage was replaced with 4K digital video screens at several concession stands throughout 
the concourses. The updated screens allow Aramark to implement high-quality, full-motion 
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images to promote food and beverage offerings and provide options for flexibility in theme or 
offerings between events. The screens also allow for enhanced customer experience. 
 
Capital Repairs 
Two unexpected capital repairs were necessary to complete in 2020. The repairs included a steam 
valve on a hot water system and a variable frequency drive on a large air handling unit fan motor.   
 
4. The Authority’s Proposed Operating and Capital Budgets.  
In June 2020, the Authority adopted its 2020-2021 Operating and Capital Budgets for the period 
from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. Exhibit 1 presents the Authority’s 2020-2021 Operating 
and Capital Budgets. 
 
The budget includes three accounts: the operating account, capital reserve account, and 
concession capital account. The operating account is used to account for the Authority’s 
operations of U.S. Bank Stadium, the capital reserve account is used to account for capital 
improvements, and the concession capital reserve account is used to account for concession 
capital improvements.  
 
5. The Authority’s Implementation of the Operating and Capital Budgets.  
The Authority’s Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 presents revenues and expenses 
for the period from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020 for the three accounts: operating 
account, capital reserve account, and concession capital account. Exhibit 2 presents the 
Authority’s Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2019-2020. 
 
Additional Exhibits 
The Authority would like to share two additional reports with the legislative committees: the 
Authority’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2020 and an outline of Authority’s new logo and core values. 
 
Exhibit 3 presents the Authority’s CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The CAFR has 
three major sections:  introductory, financial, and statistical.  The financial section includes the 
independent auditors’ report, management’s discussion and analysis, the basic financial 
statements, including the notes to the financial statements, and required supplementary 
information. This is the third year that an independent audit firm, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA), 
conducted the audit.  CLA issued an unmodified audit opinion, dated October 28, 2020, and 
opined that the financial statements present fairly the financial position of the Authority as of 
June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the fiscal year 
then ended.   
 
Exhibit 4 presents an outline of the Authority’s new logo and detailed descriptions of the core 
values of the organization.   
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We are proud of our operation of U.S. Bank Stadium and we welcome any questions.  Please feel 
free to contact us. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority   Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority 
1005 Fourth Street     1005 Fourth Street 
Minneapolis, MN  55415    Minneapolis, MN  55415 
Email:  Vekich@MSFA.com    Email:  James.Farstad@MSFA.com 
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
Budget Report 2019-2020
July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020

Original Amended
2019-2020 2019-2020 Q4 - Actual

Operating Account Annual Budget Annual Budget 07/01/2019-06/30/2020

Revenues:
Stadium operating payments
   State of Minnesota operating payment 6,672,378$             6,672,378$              6,609,089$                  
   Minnesota Vikings operating payment 9,288,180$             9,288,180$              9,298,867$                  
Stadium operating revenue-SMG 25,663,719$           25,663,719$            14,142,738$                
Miscellaneous revenues 64,200$                  64,200$                   2,022,143$                  

Total operating revenues 41,688,477$           41,688,477$            32,072,837$                
Expenses:
Personal services 712,866$                712,866$                 660,059$                     
Professional services 1,609,725$             1,609,725$              1,385,176$                  
Supplies and network support 221,000$                221,000$                 217,992$                     
Stadium contractual commitments 957,569$                957,569$                 800,699$                     
Insurance 322,118$                322,118$                 273,812$                     
Miscellaneous 486,220$                486,220$                 606,771$                     
Stadium operating expense-SMG 34,630,201$           34,630,201$            24,537,327$                

Total operating expenses 38,939,699$           38,939,699$            28,481,835$                
Operating income/(loss) 2,748,778$             2,748,778$              3,591,002$                  

Nonoperating revenues/(expenses):
Revenues-Investment earnings 84,000$                  84,000$                   152,903$                     
Revenues-Taxes-State of Minnesota 2,430,018$             2,430,018$              1,836,208$                  
Expenses-Stadium construction project expenses -$                        -$                         1,204,089$                  
Loss on disposal of assets -$                        -$                         (4,919,682)$                 

Total nonoperating revenues/(expenses) 2,514,018$             2,514,018$              (1,726,482)$                 

Net Income/(loss) before transfers 5,262,796$             5,262,796$              1,864,520$                  
Transfers:
Transfer to Capital Reserve fund (4,500,000)$            (4,500,000)$             -$                             

Change in Account Balance 762,796$                762,796$                 1,864,520$                  

Beginning Operating Account Balance 8,406,321$             8,406,321$              8,406,321$                  
Ending Operating Account Balance 9,169,117$             9,169,117$              10,270,841$                

Capital  Reserve Account
Revenues:
Minnesota Vikings Capital Cost payment 1,688,263$             1,688,263$              1,640,977$                  
State of Minnesota Capital payment 1,668,095$             1,668,095$              1,652,272$                  
Settlement agreement and project closeout funding -$                        26,959,266$            23,607,452$                
Gain on disposal of assets 266,500$                     

Total revenues 3,356,358$             30,315,624$            27,167,200$                

Capital expenses 3,444,721$             30,403,987$            16,276,273$                

Net Income/(loss) before transfers (88,363)$                 (88,363)$                  10,890,927$                
Transfers:
Transfer from Operating Account 4,500,000$             4,500,000$              
Transfer from Trust Account 1,904,951$                  

4,500,000$             4,500,000$              1,904,951$                  

Change in Account Balance 4,411,637$             4,411,637$              12,795,879$                

Beginning Capital Reserve Account Balance 2,134,288$             2,134,288$              2,134,288$                  
Ending Capital Reserve Account Balance 6,545,925$             6,545,925$              14,930,167$                

Concession Capital  Reserve Account
Revenues:
Concession Capital Reserve payment 800,000$                800,000$                 639,757$                     

Concession capital expenses 705,080$                1,998,990$              674,792$                     

Change in Account Balance 94,920$                  (1,198,990)$             (35,035)$                      

Beginning Concession Capital Reserve Account Balance 1,710,497$             1,710,497$              1,710,497$                  
Ending Concession Capital Reserve Account Balance 1,805,417$             511,507$                 1,675,462$                  
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INTRODUCTORY SECTION

The Introductory Section contains the letter of transmittal, 

which provides an overview of the Minnesota Sports Facilities 

Authority’s finances, economic prospects, and achievements�  

Also, included in this section is the list of commissioners and  

administrative officials, the organization chart, and the Certificate  

of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, awarded 

by the Government Finance Officers Association� It is the highest 

form of recognition in governmental financial reporting�

— A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA —

F O R  T H E  F I S C A L  Y E A R  E N D E D  J U N E  3 0 ,  2 0 2 0
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Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority 
1005 4th Street South, Suite 401, Minneapolis, MN  55415-1752

October 28, 2020

To the Honorable Chairman and Commissioners of the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority:

I am pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Minnesota 
Sports Facilities Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020�  The financial statements 
included in this report conform to generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)�  Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and 
the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Authority’s 
management�  To the best of my knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material 
respects and are reported in a manner that presents fairly the financial position and results of 
operations of the Authority�  All necessary disclosures have been included to enable the reader to gain 
the maximum understanding of the Authority’s financial affairs�

The Authority’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control 
structure designed to ensure that its assets are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure 
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles�  The internal control structure is designed 
to provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met and that the financial 
statements will be free from material misstatement�  The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes 
that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived�  The evaluation of costs 
and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management�  

The reader is referred to Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section for additional 
information regarding the activities and financial position of the Authority�  The MD&A provides a 
narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements�  The MD&A complements 
this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it�

The following subjects are discussed in this letter:

• Profile of the Authority,
• Economic Condition and Outlook,
• Major Initiatives and Accomplishments,
• Independent Audit,
• Awards, and
• Acknowledgements�

Phone: 612-332-0386   TTY: 1-800-627-3529   Fax: 612-332-8334
www.msfa.com   Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Employer



8

Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority 
1005 4th Street South, Suite 401, Minneapolis, MN  55415-1752

PROFILE OF THE AUTHORITY

In May 2012, the Minnesota legislature established the Authority as a public body and political  
subdivision of the state�  Per Minnesota Statutes, 473J�07, Subd� 2 the Authority is comprised of 
five commissioners, the governor of the state of Minnesota appoints the chair and two additional 
commissioners, and the mayor of the city of Minneapolis appoints two commissioners�  The 
commissioners serve four-year terms�  The governing body sets policy for the administration of the 
Authority and the Executive Director directs the Authority’s operations and carries out the policies 
established by the board�

The Authority was established to provide for the construction, financing, and long-term use of U�S� 
Bank Stadium and related stadium infrastructure as a venue for professional football and a broad range 
of other civic, community, athletic, educational, cultural, and commercial activities�

U�S� Bank Stadium, located in Minneapolis, Minnesota, is a magnet for entertainment as guests from 
the Minneapolis-St� Paul metropolitan area and throughout Minnesota attended and/or participated in 
events in and around the stadium�  Professional football events, amateur and collegiate athletic events, 
concerts, motorsports events, corporate, educational, and private events filled the stadium’s event 
schedule�  This schedule changed suddenly when the coronavirus hit Minnesota�

COVID-19

Minnesota Governor Walz issued an executive order on March 13, 2020 declaring a peacetime 
emergency providing guidance on the prevention and reduction of community spread of the coronavirus 
(COVID-19) in Minnesota and encouraging Minnesotans to “Stay Home�”  COVID-19 was declared a 
state and national pandemic�  Schools, offices, businesses, and churches closed, and public events 
were cancelled to reduce the spread of the pandemic� 

Although some businesses and retail establishments reopened in late May or early June 2020 no 
events were held in the stadium�  Numerous events that were scheduled to be hosted at the stadium in 
spring 2020 were cancelled, postponed or rescheduled as a result of the pandemic�  Event cancellation 
impacted stadium operations with a significant reduction in stadium operating revenues as well as 
stadium operating expenses�  Several events were rescheduled for the 2021 calendar year�

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Local Economy
Minnesota’s economic growth is influenced by employment growth, consumer purchases, property 
rights, and household finances�  Employment opportunities and property rights are the foundation for 
a market-based economy�  These economic indicators are important for the sports and entertainment 
industry as they influence stadium event attendance, ticket revenues, food and beverage revenues, and 
event space rental revenues�
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This past spring Minnesota experienced a significant decrease in economic activity due to the pandemic 
and the civil unrest in the Minneapolis-St� Paul metropolitan area�  The death of George Floyd in May 
2020 sparked protests in Minneapolis and nationwide against police brutality�  Peaceful protests quickly 
turned to riots�  Over 1,500 businesses in the metropolitan area were damaged by burning, vandalizing, 
graffiti, and looting during several nights of unrest�  Fortunately, the stadium was not damaged during 
the civil unrest�  Damages from the civil unrest are estimated to exceed $500 million� Some businesses 
in the damaged areas have permanently closed, some businesses have relocated, and other businesses 
have slowly begun to rebuild�  Demolition of the damaged buildings is underway and reconstruction 
plans are on the horizon� 

As the pandemic continues to challenge Minnesota’s economy the outlook for growth has slowed�  The 
Bureau of Economic analysis estimates that real GDP decreased at an annual rate of 5�0 percent during 
the first quarter of 2020�  Minnesota’s macroeconomic consultant, IHS Markit, in July 2020, forecast 
a 6�1 percent decline in real GDP in 2020�  IHS expects real GDP growth to turn positive in the third 
quarter of 2020, and they forecast a 3�7 percent annual growth in 2021�  IHS Markit expects real GDP 
to reach its pre-recession level in 2022�

Minnesota’s seasonally adjusted unemployment rate continues to move lower, falling to 7�4 percent in 
August 2020 which is a decrease of �2 percent from July 2020 according to Minnesota’s Department of 
Employment and Economic Development�  Minnesota added seasonally adjusted 40,500 payroll jobs 
in August 2020, up 1�5 percent from July 2020�  Minnesota continues to see steady job growth and a 
decline in unemployment applications�  Replacement of jobs that were lost during the pandemic will 
take time as job growth has been uneven across industries and occupations�  

The Consumer Price Index (CPI) for All Urban Consumers in the Minneapolis-St� Paul-Bloomington 
metropolitan area decreased �3 percent from July 2019 to July 2020 as reported by the U�S� Bureau 
of Labor Statistics�  The CPI is a measure of the average change in prices over time in a fixed market 
basket of goods and services�

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Stadium Operator
ASM Global (formerly known as SMG) is responsible for marketing and sales, event services, stadium 
security, and stadium management and operations at U�S� Bank Stadium�  U�S� Bank Stadium’s 
operations are included in the Authority’s financial statements�  Following are highlights of the 2019-
2020 events hosted at the stadium:

Minnesota Vikings Home Football Games and Other Events
Minnesota Vikings kicked-off their 2019 football season at U�S� Bank Stadium with their first preseason 
home game on August 18, 2019�  The Team played their second preseason home game on August 24, 
2019 and eight additional regular season home games at U�S� Bank Stadium�  
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Other events that entertained guests at the stadium included the Minneapolis X Games 2019 which 
held its third event at the stadium from August 1 through August 4, 2019�  The Minnesota State High 
School League hosted soccer games, football semi-finals games, and prep bowl championship games 
in October and November 2019 at the stadium�  Monster Jam hosted two motorsport shows in the 
stadium, the first show was on December 14, 2019 and the second show was on February 15, 2020�  
In addition, there were several other events hosted at the stadium including amateur football games, 
collegiate baseball games, and a variety of community, corporate, and private events�  

U�S� Bank Stadium also hosted many public and private tours as it is a popular tourist activity for guests 
to learn the facts and figures of the stadium’s operations, view the beautiful artwork throughout the 
stadium, and experience the clubs and the stadium’s back-of-house operations�  ASM Global offered 
customized educational tours for elementary, middle school and high school students�  Students 
were able to participate in two-hour Sustainability Education tours and Career Path Education tours�  
Students journeyed through the stadium while the tour guides linked the stadium’s operations to the 
tour’s topics�  

In late March 2020 several events were cancelled, postponed or rescheduled due to Governor Walz’s 
Executive “Stay at Home” Order and the pandemic�  The NCAA Wrestling Championship event 
scheduled for March 2020 was cancelled, three springtime concerts scheduled to be held at the 
stadium were postponed and/or rescheduled, and many other events and tours were cancelled or 
rescheduled�  No events were held at the stadium during the months of April 2020 through June 2020 
due to the pandemic�

Future Events
In September 2020 events returned to the stadium and the first Minnesota Vikings home football game 
of the 2020 season was held on September 13, 2020, albeit without fans�  The second home game was 
held on September 27, 2020 with very limited attendance�  Six additional Minnesota Vikings home 
football games are scheduled to be played at the stadium�  The Authority, stadium management, the 
Minnesota Vikings, the NFL, and Governor Walz’s office continue to work together to develop plans for 
a full reopening of the stadium�

Event planning and scheduling for fiscal year 2021 remains fluid and stadium management is in 
discussions for hosting a variety of events at U�S� Bank Stadium including:  youth sports, tradeshows, 
galas, field events, club events and potentially a concert�

Stadium Concessionaire
Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services, LLC (Aramark) the stadium’s food and beverage service, 
premium catering service, and concession services provider reported gross sales of $26,461,629 for 
its fourth year of operations at U�S� Bank Stadium�  Aramark paid commissions on certain food and 
beverage sales to the Minnesota Vikings for their events and the Authority reported food and beverage 
commission revenues of $1,808,561 for the fourth year of operations for Authority events�  The Authority 
also reported capital contributions of $639,757 from Aramark, which is 2�5 percent of commissionable 
gross food and beverage sales, for deposit into the Authority’s concession capital reserve account�
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Capital improvements
The following capital and concession capital improvements were made to U�S� Bank Stadium during 
the fiscal year:

• Building modifications $6,483,759
• Purchase of artificial playing surface protective cover $1,059,452
• Installation of new artificial playing surface (turf) $642,858
• Purchase of concession equipment $514,359
• Installation of branding enhancement signage $267,000
• Building modifications to Vikings Voyage $228,225
• Installation of electrical modifications to the stadium $88,226
• Purchase of X-ray machines $71,818
• Purchase of new building equipment $62,892
• Purchase of building cameras $46,802
• Purchase of cleaning equipment $87,638
• Purchase of technology equipment $38,466
• Purchases of other equipment $96,983

Settlement Agreement and Exterior Repair Project
Shortly after U�S� Bank Stadium opened in 2016 water penetration issues and concerns with the 
longevity of the original exterior enclosure of the building surfaced�  These concerns prompted the 
Authority, eight companies associated with the design, engineering and construction of the stadium, 
and their associated insurance companies to come together through mediation to determine a solution 
to address the issues�  The outcome of the mediation was to redesign, engineer and construct a new 
enhanced exterior enclosure with similar looking new exterior panels and an improved water resistant 
and structurally sound exterior�  The parties agreed that a completely new exterior enclosure would 
ensure the highest level of building performance over its lifetime�

On February 28, 2020 the Authority board authorized execution of the Settlement Agreement that 
provided funding of $21,497,449 in repairs to the stadium’s exterior�  On that same date the board 
also authorized execution of a contract revision with the construction manager for the exterior repair 
project for $21,497,449�  Work on the exterior repairs began immediately and continued through 
October 2020�  Completion of the repair project is expected to be in the summer of 2021�  As of  
June 30, 2020, repair expenses of $13,389,518 had been incurred and are reported as nonoperating 
stadium project expenses�

Downtown East Parking Garage and Mills Fleet Farm Parking Garage
The Authority owns the Downtown East Parking Garage which has 455 parking spaces and is located 
beneath the stadium plaza on a site adjacent to the stadium�  The Authority also owns the six-level 
Mills Fleet Farm Parking Garage which has 1,610 parking spaces and is connected via the stadium 
skyway to U�S� Bank Stadium�  Beginning on December 31, 2015 Ryan Companies assumed operational 
responsibility for the ramps�  Ryan Companies hired a parking management company, Denison Parking, 
Inc�, to operate both parking facilities�  All parking revenues belong to Ryan Companies during their 
management period and they are responsible for all parking expenses� 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The Authority’s financial statements have been audited as required by state statute and received an 
unmodified opinion by the accounting firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA)�  Minnesota Statutes 473J�07, 
subd�7, requires the Minnesota Office of the Legislative Auditor (Legislative Auditor) conduct an annual 
audit of the financial statements of the Authority�  The Legislative Auditor delegated this responsibility 
for the current audit to CLA�  In addition to meeting the requirements of the state statutes, the audit 
was designed to meet the requirements of the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States�  The report of the independent 
auditors on the basic financial statements can be found in the financial section of this annual report�

AWARDS

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded the 
Authority with the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Authority 
for its CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019�  This was the seventh year that the Authority 
received this prestigious award�  In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental 
unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, 
the contents of which conform to program standards�  This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements� The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious 
national award which recognizes conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and 
local government financial reports�  The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year 
only�  Management believes that the current CAFR meets the Certificate of Achievement Program’s 
requirements, and it will be submitted to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate�  
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Director of Finance
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FINANCIAL SECTION

The Financial Section includes the independent auditors’ report, 

management’s discussion and analysis, and the basic financial 

statements including the notes to the financial statements, and 

required supplementary information�
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Commissioners 
Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 

Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority, a 
component unit of the state of Minnesota, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority’s 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Board of Commissioners 
Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority 

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority as of June 30, 2020, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of the Authority’s share of the net pension liability 
– State Employees Retirement Fund, and the schedule of the Authority’s contributions – State 
Employees Retirement Fund, as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance 

Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority’s basic financial statements. The 
introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. They have not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 
2020, on our consideration of the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority’s internal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
October 28, 2020 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority (Authority) Comprehensive Annual Financial 

Report (CAFR) presents a narrative overview and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance for 

the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020�  The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Authority’s 

financial performance as a whole�  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 

conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in the Letter of Transmittal, located in the 

Introductory Section of the CAFR�

Financial Highlights

The basic financial statements report information about the Authority using the economic resources 

measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting�  Key financial highlights for the Authority’s fiscal 

year ended June 30, 2020 are as follows:

• Overall, the Authority’s net position decreased $27,194,071, from $1,007,746,206 as of June 30, 2019 

to $980,552,135 as of June 30, 2020�  

• Operating expenses of $79,979,931 exceeded operating revenues of $32,072,837 resulting in an 

operating loss of $47,907,094 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020�  Depreciation expense of 

$50,795,764 was the largest operating expense�

• The net increase in capital assets was $2,795,840 as of June 30, 2020�  The largest capital project 

this year was building modifications of $6,483,759�

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority’s basic financial 

statements�  The financial section of this report consists of: 

(1) Independent Auditors’ Report

(2) Management’s Discussion and Analysis (presented here)

(3) Basic (Enterprise fund) Financial Statements:

a� Statement of net position

b� Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position

c� Statement of cash flows

(4) Notes to the Financial Statements

This report also includes other required supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 

statements�

The Authority uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related legal 

requirements�  The Authority maintains one proprietary fund, an enterprise fund�  The enterprise fund 

financial statements report information about the Authority using accounting methods similar to 

those used by private-sector businesses in which costs are recovered primarily through user charges�  

Enterprise fund financial statements provide both short-term and long-term financial information about 

the Authority’s overall financial status�  The statements present information on the Authority’s assets, 

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position and show how 

net position has changed during the year�  These financial statements and explanatory notes are prepared 

in conformance with generally accepted governmental accounting principles, and are reported using the 

accrual basis of accounting�
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Statement of net position

The statement of net position presents information on the financial resources and obligations of the 

Authority on June 30, 2020�  The difference between the sum of total assets and deferred outflows of 

resources and the sum of total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is net position�  Over time, 

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial health of 

the Authority is improving or deteriorating� 

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how 

the Authority’s net position changed during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020�  All of the fiscal year’s 

revenues and expenses are accounted for in this statement, regardless of when cash is received or paid�  

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows reports cash and cash equivalent activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 

2020 as a result of operating, noncapital financing, capital, and investing activities�  

Notes to the financial statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 

of the data provided in the enterprise fund financial statements�  

Required supplementary information

The required supplementary information consists of two schedules, Schedule of the Authority’s Share of 

Net Pension Liability State Employees Retirement Fund and Schedule of Authority’s Contributions State 

Employees Retirement Fund�  
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Financial Analysis

Statement of Net Position

Following is a table that presents the Authority’s Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Statement of Net Position at June 30, 2020 and 2019

     Increase/

   June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 (decrease)

ASSETS:

Current and other assets $45,619,788 $23,070,700 $22,549,088

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 953,867,695 1,000,408,761 (46,541,066)

Noncurrent assets  22,449,782 6,639,163 15,810,619

   Total assets   1,021,937,265 1,030,118,624 (8,181,359)  

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:   

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 476,907 241,494 235,413

   

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities  33,993,347 13,599,075 20,394,272

Noncurrent liabilities  6,826,456 8,038,239 (1,211,783)

   Total liabilities  40,819,803 21,637,314 19,182,489

   

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 1,042,234 976,598 65,636

   

NET POSITION:

Investment in capital assets 953,867,695 1,000,408,761 (46,541,066)

Restricted for capital projects 21,845,565 3,845,171 18,000,394

Unrestricted  4,838,875 3,492,274 1,346,601

   Total net position  $980,552,135 $1,007,746,206 ($27,194,071)

The Authority’s net position decreased $27,194,071 (27%) to $980,552,135�  The three components 

of net position are:  investment in capital assets, restricted for capital projects, and unrestricted�  

The largest portion of the Authority’s net position (97�3 percent) at June 30, 2020 reflects its 

investment in capital assets of $953,867,695�  These assets are comprised of land, construction in 

progress, buildings, building equipment, land improvements, and equipment of U�S� Bank Stadium, 

Mills Fleet Farm Parking Garage, and the Downtown East Parking Garage�  Accordingly, these assets 

are not available for future spending�  Restricted net position at June 30, 2020 was $21,845,565 and 

this represents resources that are restricted for future capital purchases�  Unrestricted net position 

at June 30, 2020 was $4,838,875� These resources are available and may be used to meet the 

Authority’s ongoing and future obligations�
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Summary of Changes in Net Position

The following table summarizes the changes in net position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019�

Summary of Changes in Net Position

Increase/ 
(decrease)June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Operating revenues $32,072,837 $47,857,056 ($15,784,219)

Operating expenses (79,979,931) (99,110,542) (19,130,611)

   Total operating income or (loss) (47,907,094) (51,253,486) 3,346,392

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

   Nonoperating revenues 11,328,113 3,739,117 7,588,996

   Nonoperating expenses (19,380,547 (1,650,775) 17,729,772

    Total nonoperating revenues 
(expenses) (8,052,434) 2,088,342 (10,140,776)

(Loss) before capital contributions (55,959,528) (49,165,144) (6,794,384)

Capital contributions 28,765,457 7,071,937 21,693,520

Changes in net position      (27,194,071)      (42,093,207) 14,899,136

Total net position-beginning of year   1,007,746,206   1,049,839,413 (42,093,207)

Total net position-end of year    $980,552,135 $1,007,746,206 ($27,194,071)

Operating revenues include operating payments from the state of Minnesota and Minnesota Vikings, 

stadium operating revenues, and other revenues�  In fiscal year 2020 operating revenues totaled 

$32,072,837, a decrease of $15,784,219 (33 percent) from fiscal year 2019�  This decrease is primarily 

due to a decrease in stadium operating revenues�  Explanations of these changes include the following:

• Stadium operating revenues decreased $16,754,368 (54�2 percent) from the prior fiscal year primarily 

due to events that were scheduled to be hosted in the stadium during the months of April through June 

2020 were cancelled, postponed, or rescheduled to prevent the spread of the pandemic, COVID-19�  

Commissions received from food and beverage concession and catering sales, merchandise sales, and 

program revenues decreased $4,973,139, ticket rebates and facility fees decreased $3,382,915, and 

rent decreased $1,544,605�

• Operating payments from the state of Minnesota and Minnesota Vikings increased by $338,385 (2�2 

percent) from the prior fiscal year due to the Minnesota Vikings’ contractually required payment 

increase of 3 percent per year and the state of Minnesota’s annual adjustment factor�

• Other revenues increased $632,765 from the prior year�
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Operating expenses include personal services, professional services, supplies, repairs, and maintenance, 

rent, other expenses, stadium operating expenses, and depreciation�  For fiscal year 2020 operating 

expenses totaled $79,979,931 which represents a decrease of $19,130,611 (19�3 percent) when compared 

to fiscal year 2019�  This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in stadium operating expenses of 

$19,231,843 (43�4 percent) from the prior fiscal year�  This decrease is associated with costs savings and 

reductions due to fewer events were hosted in the stadium in fiscal year 2020 as compared to fiscal 

year 2019�

Other changes in fiscal year 2020 include the following:

• Nonoperating revenues increased by $7,588,996 primarily due to the construction closeout contribution 

to the capital reserve account�

• Nonoperating expenses increased by $17,729,772 primarily due to the exterior repair project�

• Capital contributions increased by $21,693,520 due to the contribution from the settlement agreement�

Capital Assets

The following table compares the Authority’s capital assets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 net of 

accumulated depreciation:

Capital Assets

     Increase/

  June 30, 2020  June 30, 2019 (decrease)

CAPITAL ASSETS: (net of depreciation):

Non-depreciable-   

Land  $31,983,174 $31,983,174 $-

Construction in progress 57,680 544,162 ($486,482)  

 

Depreciable-   

Buildings  744,895,511 766,770,828 (21,875,317)

Building equipment  72,143,309 79,991,868 (7,848,559)

Land improvements  26,366,462 28,000,173 (1,633,711)

Equipment  78,421,559 93,118,556 (14,696,997)

   Total capital assets  $953,867,695 $1,000,408,761 ($46,541,066)

The Authority’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020 was $953,867,695 (net of accumulated 

depreciation) and consists of land, construction in progress, buildings, building equipment, land 

improvements, and equipment of U�S� Bank Stadium, Mills Fleet Farm Parking Garage, and Downtown 

East Parking Garage�  Total capital assets decreased $46,541,066 from the prior year�  This decrease is 

primarily due to depreciation expense of $50,795,764�

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial 

statements, see note I�C�5 and note II�C�

Next Year’s Budget

An annual operating budget is adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles�  

Discussion and preparation of the fiscal year 2020-2021 annual operating and capital budgets began in 

the spring 2020�  The Authority then approved and adopted the 2020-2021 operating and capital budgets 
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in June 2020�  This budget process will be followed for adoption of the 2021-2022 budget�  Per Minnesota 

Statutes 3�8842, the Legislative Commission on Minnesota Sports Facilities (Legislative Commission) is 

required to oversee the Authority’s operating and capital budgets�  An annual report is presented to the 

Legislative Commission�  Staff presents quarterly budget reports to the Authority board�

The Authority’s adopted 2020-2021 operating budget includes operating revenues of $36,310,146 which 

includes:  stadium operating payments from the state of Minnesota of $6,000,000 and the Minnesota 

Vikings of $9,566,825 for a combined total of $14,566,825, stadium operating revenues of $20,679,121, and 

miscellaneous revenues of $64,200�  Also included in this budget are operating expenses of $34,793,267 

which includes stadium operating expenses of $30,472,900, professional services of $1,857,000, rent 

$957,569, personal services of $739,680, supplies and network support of $112,326, and other expenses 

of $653,792�

Operating revenues of $36,310,146 are budgeted to exceed operating expenses of $34,793,267 for a 

net operating loss of $1,516,879�  Also, investment earnings of $87,000 are included in the budget as 

nonoperating revenues�  Net income is budgeted to be $1,603,879�

In addition to the 2020-2021 operating budget, the capital and concession capital budgets include capital 

expenses of $16,961,032 and concession capital expenses of $1,353,910�  These expenses will be funded 

by capital revenues from the state of Minnesota and the Minnesota Vikings of $3,238,911, the 2�5 percent 

concession capital reserve revenues of $241,725, and the capital reserve and concession capital reserve�  

The Authority considered the following factors when setting the 2020-2021 budget and fees that will be 

charged for use of U�S� Bank Stadium:

• Stadium event schedule

• Number and type of stadium events

• Stadium event attendance

• Stadium rental pricing

• Product pricing

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all those 

with an interest in its financial position and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the 

money it receives�  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests 

for additional information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, Minnesota Sports Facilities 

Authority, 1005 Fourth Street South, Minneapolis, Minnesota   55415�  This report may also be found on 

the Authority’s website at www�msfa�com�
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
June 30, 2020

ASSETS

Current assets:
   Cash and cash equivalents  $34,899,885 
   Restricted cash and cash equivalents  362,753 
   Investments  4,999,205 
   Receivables:
     Accounts and other receivables  4,389,051 
   Prepaid items  968,894 
          Total current assets  45,619,788 
Noncurrent assets:
   Restricted cash and cash equivalents  21,104,570 
   Capital assets:
     Non-depreciable:
       Land  31,983,174 
       Construction in progress  57,680 
     Depreciable:
       Buildings  860,270,853 
       Building equipment  100,049,123 
       Land improvements  32,916,971 
       Equipment  130,030,704 
       Accumulated depreciation  (201,440,810)
          Total capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)  953,867,695 
   Prepaid project insurance  1,345,212 
          Total noncurrent assets  976,317,477 
          Total assets  1,021,937,265 

 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions  476,907 

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:  
   Salaries and compensated absences payable  185,458 
   Accounts and other payables  2,848,565 
   Construction retainage payable  699,476 
   Advanced ticket sales and deposits  27,177,616 
   Restricted stadium builders licenses liability  121,902 
   Unearned revenue  2,960,330 
          Total current liabilities  33,993,347 
Noncurrent liabilities:
   Compensated absences payable  68,330 
   Net pension liability  225,096 
   Unearned revenue  6,533,030 
          Total liabilities  40,819,803 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions  1,042,234 

NET POSITION

Investment in capital assets  953,867,695 
Restricted for capital projects  21,845,565 
Unrestricted  4,838,875 
          Total net position  $980,552,135 
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement�  
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Operating revenues:

   Operating payments from state of Minnesota and Minnesota Vikings  $15,907,958 

   Stadium operating revenues  14,142,738 

   Other revenues  2,022,141 

          Total operating revenues  32,072,837 

Operating expenses:

   Personal services  660,059 

   Professional services  1,385,177 

   Supplies, repairs and maintenance  920,323 

   Rent  800,699 

   Other expenses  311,155 

   Stadium operating expenses  25,106,754 

   Depreciation  50,795,764 

          Total operating expenses  79,979,931 

          Total operating (loss)  (47,907,094)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

   Investment earnings  174,920 

   Other contributions for stadium project  9,316,985 

   Sales tax revenues  1,836,208 

   Stadium project expenses  (14,280,236)

   Stadium builders licenses expenses  (447,129)

   Loss on disposal of assets  (4,653,182)
 

          Total nonoperating (expenses)  (8,052,434)

          (Loss) before capital contributions  (55,959,528)
 

Capital contributions  28,765,457 

          Change in net position  (27,194,071)

          Total net position, July 1, 2019  1,007,746,206 

          Total net position, June 30, 2020  $980,552,135 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement�
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

   Receipts from state of Minnesota and Minnesota Vikings  $15,897,270 

   Receipts from ticket sales  21,122,284 

   Receipts from events  15,997,504 

   Receipts from food and beverage commissions  1,870,223 

   Receipts from others  1,629,266 

   Payments for employee services  (7,567,234)

   Payments to suppliers and others  (19,186,585)

   Payments for event and stadium operations  (7,537,497)

          Net cash provided by operating activities  22,225,231 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

   Sales taxes received from state of Minnesota  2,120,019 
   Other contributions received for stadium project  9,316,984 
   Payments for stadium project  (10,845,384)

          Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities  591,619 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ACTIVITIES

   Capital contributions received  29,502,228 
   Acquisition and construction of assets  (11,724,813)
   Other payments  (1,596,101)

          Net cash provided by capital activities  16,181,314 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

   Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments  15,343,717 
   Purchase of investments  (14,017,319)
   Interest on investments  202,177 

          Net cash provided by investing activities  1,528,575 
          Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  40,526,739 

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2019  15,840,469 
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2020  $56,367,208 

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating (loss)  $(47,907,094)

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided
   by operating activities:
   Depreciation expense  50,795,764 
   Change in assets and liabilities:
      Decrease in accounts receivable  2,205,530 
      (Increase) in prepaid items  (440,821)
      (Decrease) in net pension liability and related deferred inflows and deferred outflows  (107,056)
       (Decrease) in salaries and compensated absences payable and accounts and other payables  (3,470,204)
      (Decrease) in revenue sharing distribution payable  (650,379)
      (Decrease) in unearned revenues  (74,434)
      Increase in advanced ticket sales and deposits  21,873,925 

          Total adjustments  70,132,325 

          Net cash provided by operating activities  $22,225,231 

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
   Increase in fair value of investments  $34,396 
   Accrued construction costs  $2,801,175 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement�
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020

I. Summary of significant accounting policies

A. Organization and reporting entity

1� Organization

The Minnesota Sports Facilities Authority (Authority) was established pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 473J�07, as amended, (Laws of Minnesota 2012, Chapter 299, Article1, Section 11)�  The Authority 

is comprised of five commissioners:  the chair and two commissioners appointed by the governor of 

Minnesota and two commissioners appointed by the mayor of the city of Minneapolis�  Commissioners 

serve four-year terms beginning January 1�  The chair serves at the pleasure of the governor�  The board 

makes policies for the administration of the Authority and it appoints an executive director to act as 

the administrative head of the Authority�  The executive director serves at the pleasure of the board, 

carries out the policies established by the board, directs business and administrative procedures, and 

recommends personnel to be appointed by the board�

The Authority was created to provide for the construction, financing, and long-term operation of 

U�S� Bank Stadium and the related stadium infrastructure as a venue for professional football and a 

broad range of other civic, community, athletic, educational, cultural and commercial activities�  

2� Financial reporting entity

As defined by U�S� generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the financial reporting entity 

consists of a primary government, as well as its component units, which are legally separate organizations 

for which the officials of the primary government are financially accountable�  Financial accountability 

is defined as:

 a�  Appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and either (1) the ability to 

impose will by the primary government or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide 

a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government; or

 b�  Fiscal dependency on the primary government�

Based upon the application of these criteria, the Authority has no component units�  However, the 

Authority is a component unit of the state of Minnesota because the governor appoints three of the 

five board members and the state of Minnesota is responsible for the debt incurred for the Authority’s 

share of the cost of construction of the stadium and stadium infrastructure�

B. Basis of presentation and measurement focus

1� Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as applied to 

government units in the United States of America�  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB) is the accepted primary standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 

financial reporting principles�  Significant accounting policies of the Authority are described below�

The Authority reports its activities as a business-type activity�  The operations of the Authority are 

accounted for in an enterprise fund which is a set of self-balancing accounts comprised of assets, 

deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues, and 

expenses�  The fund is used to account for the operation of U�S� Bank Stadium and related stadium



30

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

infrastructure�  The financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, 

expenses, and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows�  All assets, deferred outflows of 

resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent), and deferred inflows of resources are included on 

the statement of net position�  Reported net position is segregated into three categories:   investment 

in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted�  The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 

position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position�

2� Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The Authority’s enterprise fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting�  Revenues are recorded when earned, and 

expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows  

take place� 

C. Assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position

1� Cash, cash equivalents and investments

The Authority has defined cash and cash equivalents as cash on hand, cash on deposit in demand deposit 

accounts, commercial paper, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or 

less from the date of acquisition�  Authority deposits are backed by a combination of Federal Deposit 

Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and a letter of credit from Federal Home Loan Bank for the account of 

U�S� Bank National Association, Cincinnati, Ohio for an amount of $3 million�  The letter of credit is 

irrevocable, unconditional, and nontransferable�  Certain accounts are segregated and classified as 

restricted and may not be used except in accordance with contractual terms�

The Authority may invest funds as authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 118A, and the Authority’s 

internal investment policy�  Investments are reported at fair value and are based on quoted market prices�  

2� Receivables

 a� Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables consist of estimates of amounts due for sales tax revenues, operating 

payment from the Minnesota Vikings, and other receivables�  Accounts receivable also includes amounts 

due from the stadium builders licenses (SBLs) program�  Effective July 31, 2014, the Authority entered 

into an Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreement with Minnesota Stadium Funding Trust 

whereby the Authority agreed to sell its interest in stadium builders licenses (SBL) tranches of SBL 

revenues to Minnesota Stadium Funding Trust pursuant to SBL contracts�  SBLs entitle the holder to 

buy season tickets to certain Minnesota Vikings games held at U�S� Bank Stadium and for a certain 

seat in the stadium�  The Authority has recognized a receivable and revenue in accordance with GASB 

Statement No� 48, “Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Future Revenues and Intra-Entity Transfer of 

Assets and Future Revenues,” as the transaction qualifies as a sale of receivables�  

3� Prepaid items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 

as prepaid items in the financial statement�  Prepaid items include rental costs, insurance costs, and 
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

software and maintenance agreement costs�  The cost of prepaid items is recorded as an expense 

when consumed rather than when purchased�

4� Prepaid project insurance

Prepaid project insurance consists of the prefunded loss reserve fund that was established at stadium 

construction inception�  The insurance carrier for the owner controlled insurance program maintains 

the loss reserve fund�  Insurance costs are expensed when incurred�   

5� Capital assets

Capital assets include land, construction in progress, buildings, building equipment, land improvements, 

and equipment� Capital assets are defined by the Authority as assets with an individual or system cost 

of $5,000 or more and an estimated useful life greater than three years�  Such assets are recorded at 

historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed�  Donated capital assets are 

recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation�  Costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do 

not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized�  

Capital assets are depreciated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method�  Land 

and construction in progress are not depreciated�  Estimated useful lives are as follows:

 Capital assets Useful life

 Buildings 20 - 30 years

 Building equipment 5 - 20 years

 Land improvements 20 - 30 years

 Equipment 3 - 30 years

6�  Liabilities

 a� Salaries and compensated absences payable

Salaries and compensated absences payable include salaries and benefits incurred and unpaid as of 

June 30, 2020�  The Authority accrues vacation and sick leave when earned�  Certain employees qualify 

for a vacation leave and a sick leave benefit paid at termination or retirement�  The pay rate in effect at 

the end of the fiscal year and the employer’s share of social security contributions are used to calculate 

compensated absences accruals at June 30�  

 b� Construction retainage payable

Construction retainage payable consist of costs incurred as of June 30, 2020 for stadium repairs�  

Construction retainage is released upon completion of the contractor’s work�

 c� Advanced ticket sales and deposits

Revenues related to advance ticket sales for events that have not yet occurred are deferred until the 

event has been held at U�S� Bank Stadium�  U�S� Bank Stadium box office sells tickets through box 

office sales, Ticketmaster sales, and consignment sales�  Consignment sales consist of tickets pulled in
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

advance for the promoter�  Consignment sales are considered advance ticket sales, as the promoter is 

obligated to pay for the tickets at settlement which is after the event has occurred�  Deposits represent 

payments received from event organizers in advance of an event�

 d� Restricted stadium builders licenses liability

Restricted stadium builders licenses liability consists of funds held at June 30, 2020 for the stadium 

builders licenses program�

 e� Unearned revenues

Unearned revenues primarily consist of the unamortized amount of the capital investments from 

Aramark, Minnesota Vikings, and ASM Global and revenues received from the Minnesota Vikings in 

advance of the contractual time period�

7� Deferred outflows/inflows of resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows 

of resources�  This separate financial statement element represents a consumption of net position that 

applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (an expense) until 

then�  The amount recognized as deferred outflows of resources is related to pensions�

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position also reports a separate section for deferred 

inflows of resources�  This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position 

that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 

that time�  The amount recognized as deferred inflows of resources is related to pensions�

8� Net position

Net position represents the sum of total assets and deferred outflows of resources less the sum of total 

liabilities and deferred inflows of resources�  At June 30, 2020 the Authority had three categories of net 

position:  investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted�  

•  Investment in capital assets is the amount of net position representing capital assets net of 

accumulated depreciation�  

•  Restricted net position represents resources that have external restrictions imposed by creditors, 

grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments or restrictions imposed by law 

through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation�  This category represents resources that 

are restricted for future capital purchases�

•  Unrestricted net position is the amount of net position that does not meet the definition of 

restricted or investment in capital assets�  

9� Revenues and expenses

 a� Operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items�  Operating 

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 

connection with an enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations�  The principal operating revenues 
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020

I. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

of the Authority’s enterprise fund are:  operating payments from the state of Minnesota and Minnesota 

Vikings, stadium operating revenues, and other revenues�  Stadium operating revenues include:  rent, 

service revenues, food and beverage, advertising, ticket rebates and facility fees, suite ticket sales, 

merchandise sales, and other revenues�

Operating expenses include personal services, professional services, supplies, repairs and maintenance, 

rent, other expenses, stadium operating expenses, and depreciation on capital assets�  Stadium 

operating expenses include operating and event expenses incurred by ASM Global to manage U�S� 

Bank Stadium including service expenses, compensation and benefits, contract services, general and 

administrative, operations, repairs and maintenance, operational supplies, insurance, utilities, and other 

expenses�  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition and certain construction related 

activities are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses�

 b� Other contributions for stadium project

Amounts reported as other contributions for the stadium project include contributions from the 

Minnesota Vikings and other sources for the closeout of the stadium construction project�  These 

contributions are reported as nonoperating revenues�  

 c� Sales tax revenues

In accordance with Minnesota Statutes, 16A�726(b) and 297A�994, Subd�4�(5)(i) and (ii), a portion 

of the city of Minneapolis sales tax collections, are for the benefit of the Authority�  Amounts are 

recognized as revenue by the Authority in the year the sales taxes are imposed on the underlying 

exchange transaction by the city of Minneapolis�  The state of Minnesota withholds a portion of the 

Minneapolis sales tax disbursement to the city and issues the payment to the Authority�  These revenues 

are reported as nonoperating revenues�

II. Detailed notes

A. Cash deposits with financial institutions

Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 118A, require that all Authority deposits in excess of available federal 

deposit insurance be protected by a corporate surety bond or collateral security�  An irrevocable 

standby letter of credit issued by a Federal Home Loan Bank is an allowable form of collateral�  The 

statute further requires the total amount of collateral computed at its fair value shall be at least ten 

percent more than the amount on deposit at the close of the financial institution’s banking day, except 

for irrevocable standby letters of credit, the amount of collateral shall be at least equal to the amount 

on deposit at the close of the financial institution’s banking day�  At June 30, 2020, the carrying amount 

of the Authority’s combined demand deposit bank accounts was $32,158,748�  Bank balances were 

$33,069,548 of which $32,927,650 was invested in commercial paper, and $141,898 was covered 

by federal depository insurance�  At June 30, 2020 the balance in the money markets account was 

$24,205,882�  The balance in the trust account was $60�
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MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  
June 30, 2020

II. Detailed notes (continued)

B. Cash equivalent investments

The Authority’s investment policy addresses certain risks to which it is currently exposed as follows:

Interest rate risk.  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will 

adversely affect the fair value of an investment�  Although the Authority does not have a formal specific 

duration investment risk policy, it does have a formal investment policy by which the Authority manages 

its exposure to declines in fair value�  To meet short-term cash flow needs, the Authority’s investment 

portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the Authority to meet anticipated cash requirements 

without the occurrence of significant investment losses�  To meet long-term needs, the average duration 

of the investment portfolio should match the average duration of liabilities subject to regulatory 

requirements�  The Authority’s investments in commercial paper have a maturity of less than 270 days�

Credit risk.  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill 

its obligations�  Investment instruments purchased by the Authority must comply with Minnesota 

Statutes, Chapter 118A, and its investment policy which is more restrictive than state law�  The 

Authority’s investment policy limits investments to the following:  money market funds, savings/

demand deposits, bankers acceptances, commercial paper, U�S� Treasury Obligations, U�S� Agency 

Securities Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE), Municipal Securities, Repurchase Agreements, 

and Guaranteed Investment Contracts�  It is the Authority’s policy not to invest in inverse floaters, range 

notes, interest only strips derived from a pool of mortgages, and any security that could result in a zero 

interest accrual if held to maturity�  The Authority’s investments in commercial paper were in a U�S� 

corporation that was rated in the highest quality category and had maturities of less than 270 days�

Concentration of credit risk.  Concentration of credit risk is the risk associated with investing a significant 

portion of investments in the securities of a single issuer, excluding U�S� Guaranteed investments, investment 

pools, and mutual funds�  The Authority’s investments in commercial paper are in a single U�S� corporation�

Custodial credit risk.  The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a 

depository financial institution, then the Authority will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able 

to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party�  The custodial credit risk for 

investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counter party to a transaction, the Authority will 

not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an 

outside party�  Minnesota Statute Chap, 118A requires that deposits be secured by depository insurance or 

a combination of depository insurance and collateral securities held in the Authority’s name�  Throughout 

the current fiscal year, the combined depository insurance and collateral were sufficient to meet legal 

requirements and secure all Authority deposits, thus eliminating exposure to custodial credit risk�

The Authority had no foreign currency exposure at June 30, 2020�
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2020

II. Detailed notes (continued)

Following is a summary of the carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and investments at  

June 30, 2020:
  Custodial
 Credit  Credit  Carrying % of Total
Security Type Risk  Risk Maturities Amount Portfolio

Cash and cash equivalents (a) (b)(c) n/a $56,367,208 91�9%

U�S� Treasury Bills  (c) 9/10/2020 4,999,205 8�1%

                                                    Total     $61,366,413 100�0%

(a)  Cash and cash equivalents include Commercial paper which has a AAA credit rating�

(b)  Individual bank balances less than or equal to $250,000 are FDIC insured�  Individual balances greater than $250,000 are 

collateralized by the Authority holding a letter of credit from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati for $3 million�

(c)  Commercial paper and securities held in custody are in the Authority’s name�

Fair value reporting:  The Authority’s investments that are not recorded at amortized cost or using the 

equity method are recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2020�  GASB Statement No� 72, “Fair Value 

Measurement and Application,” defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset 

between market participants at the measure date�  This statement establishes a hierarchy of valuation 

inputs based on the extent to which the inputs are observable in the market place�  A financial instrument’s 

level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement�  The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and primary 

valuation methodologies used for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Level 1: Investment values are based on quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets (liabilities) 

in active markets that a government can access at measurement date�

Level 2: Investments have inputs, other than quoted prices within Level 1 that are observable for 

an asset (liability), either directly or indirectly�

Level 3: Investments classified as Level 3 have unobservable inputs for an asset (liability) and may 

require a degree of professional judgment�

The following table summarizes the Authority’s investments within the fair value hierarchy at June 30, 

2020:

Security Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

U�S� Treasury Bills� $- $4,999,205 $- $4,999,205

Total           $- $4,999,205 $- $4,999,205

U�S� government obligations classified in Level 2 are valued using either bid evaluations or a matrix 

based pricing technique� Bid evaluations are typically based on market quotations, yields, maturities, 

call features and ratings�  Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship 

to benchmark quoted prices�
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II. Detailed notes (continued)

C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020 was as follows:

  Balance   Balance

  July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases  June 30, 2020

Capital assets, not being depreciated:    

   Land  $31,983,174 $- $ - $31,983,174

   Construction in progress 544,162 - (486,482)     57,680

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 32,527,336   - (486,482) 32,040,854
    

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

   Buildings  853,470,644 6,800,209 - 860,270,853

   Building equipment 101,209,764  62,892  (1,223,533)  100,049,123

   Land improvements 32,916,971 - -  32,916,971

   Equipment  132,387,950 2,825,377 (5,182,623) 130,030,704

Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,119,985,329 9,688,478 (6,406,156) 1,123,267,651
    

Less:  accumulated depreciation for: 

   Buildings  (86,699,816)  (28,675,526) -  (115,375,342)

   Building equipment (21,217,896) (7,116,154) 428,236  (27,905,814)

   Land improvements (4,916,798) (1,633,711 -  (6,550,509)

   Equipment  (39,269,394) (13,370,373) 1,030,622 (51,609,145)

Total accumulated depreciation (152,103,904) (50,795,764) 1,458,858 (201,440,810)
    

   

Total capital assets, being  

depreciated, net  967,881,425 (41,107,286 (4,947,298) 921,826,841

Total capital assets, net $1,000,408,761 ($41,107,286 ($5,433,780) $953,867,695

III. Other information

A. Retirement plans

Authority employees are covered by one of two Minnesota State Retirement System (MSRS) retirement 

plans�

1� Minnesota State Retirement System-State Employees Retirement Fund (SERF)

 a� Plan Description

SERF is administered by the Minnesota State Retirement System (MSRS), and is established and 

administered in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 352�  SERF includes the General 

Employees Retirement Plan (General Plan), a multiple-employer, cost-sharing defined benefit plan�  

Certain employees of the Authority are covered by the General Plan�  The General Plan provides 

retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries�
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Minnesota Statutes, Section 352�04 requires that eligible employees contribute 6�0 percent of their 

total compensation to the fund�  Participating employers are also required to contribute 6�25 percent 

to this fund�  The Authority’s contribution to the General Plan for the year ended June 30, 2020 

was $23,805�  These contributions were equal to the contractually required contributions for each 

year as set by state statute�  All active and deferred members are fully vested to the extent of their 

contributions plus interest at a rate of 6�0 percent through June 30, 2011, 4�0 percent through June 30, 

2018, and 3�0 percent thereafter�  For monthly retirement benefits, members hired before July 1, 2010, 

are vested after three years of covered service; members hired after June 30, 2010, are vested after 

five years of covered service�  MSRS issues a publicly available financial report that may be obtained 

at www�msrs�state�mn�us; by writing to Minnesota State Retirement System, 60 Empire Drive, #300, 

St Paul, Minnesota 55103 or by calling (651) 296-2761 or 1-800-657-5757�

 b� Benefits provided

Retirement benefits can be computed using one of two methods:  the Step formula and the Level 

formula�  Members hired before July 1, 1989, may use the Step or Level formula, whichever is greater�  

Members hired on or after July 1, 1989, must use the Level formula�  Each formula converts years and 

months of service to a certain percentage�  Under the Step formula, members receive 1�20 percent of 

the high-five average salary for each of the first ten years of covered service, plus 1�70 percent for each 

year thereafter�  It also includes full benefits under the Rule of 90 (age plus years of allowable service 

equals 90)�  In contrast, the Level formula does not include the Rule of 90�  Under the Level formula, 

members receive 1�70 percent of the high-five average salary for all years of covered service, and full 

benefits are available at normal retirement age�

Annuitants receive post-retirement benefit increases of 1�0 percent through 2023, and 1�50 percent per 

year thereafter�

 c�  Pension liabilities, pension expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported a liability of $225,096 for its proportionate share of MSRS’ 

net pension liability�  The net pension liability was measured at June 30, 2019, and the total pension 

liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that 

date�  The Authority’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the contributions received by 

MSRS during the measurement period July 1, 2018, through June 30, 2019, relative to the total employer 

contributions received from all of MSRS’ participating employers�  At June 30, 2019 the Authority’s 

proportion was �016 percent, which was an increase of �004 percent from its proportion measured as 

of June 30, 2018�  

There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions and plan provisions since the prior  

measurement date�
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For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Authority recognized pension income of $107,056 for its proportionate 

share of the MSRS-SERF pension expense�  At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of 

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

  Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
  of Resources of Resources

 Differences between expected and actual experience $6,824   $781

 Changes in assumptions  $317,162  $705,268

 Difference between projected and actual  

 investment earnings - $54,976

 Changes in proportion and differences between 

 actual contributions and proportionate share  

 of contributions $129,116 $281,209

 Contributions paid to MSRS subsequent to the  

 measurement date $23,805   ----------

  Total $476,907 $1,042,234

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Authority 

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension 

liability in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021�  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and 

inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense/(income) as follows:

 Year ended Pension
 June 30: Expense/(Income)

 2021     ($107,969)

 2022 (378,943)

 2023 (136,119)

 2024 33,899

Net pension expense/(income)      ($589,132)

 d� Actuarial Assumptions 

The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability 

used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date�  The 

total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 

included in the measurement:

Inflation 2�50 percent per year

Active Member Payroll Growth 3�25 percent per year

Investment Rate of Return 7�50 percent per year
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Salary increases were based on service related rates�  Mortality rates for health post-retirement 

members were based on RP-2014 annuitant generational mortality table projected with mortality 

improvement MP-2015 from a base year of 2014, white collar adjustment, set forward two years 

for males and no age adjustment for females�  Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019, 

funding actuarial valuation were based on the results of actuarial experience studies for the period  

July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2014�

The Minnesota State Board of Investment (SBI) invests all state funds and manages the investments 

of MSRS�  During MSRS’s fiscal year 2019, the SBI board made asset allocation changes to achieve 

the long-term asset allocation developed in their fiscal year 2018�  Changes were also made to the 

benchmark indices used for domestic and international equity investments� 

In September 2018 the SBI board changed the domestic equity benchmark from the Russell 3000 Index 

to the Russell 1000 Index for 90�0 percent of the domestic equity benchmark and the Russell 2000 

index representing 10�0 percent of the total benchmark�  The SBI board also changed the International 

Equity benchmark from MSCi ACWI ex USA to the MSCI World ex USA index representing 75�0 percent 

of the International Equity benchmark, and the MSCI Emerging Markets Index for 25�0 percent of the 

benchmark�  In November 2018 the SBI board changed the fixed income allocation from 24�0 to 22�0 

percent�  The equity allocation moved from 49�0 to 51�0 percent�  In May 2019 the SBI board changed 

the fixed income allocation from 22�0 to 20�0 percent, with 10�0 percent allocated to Treasury and 10�0 

percent to bonds�  Thus, the equity allocation became 53�0 percent, with 35�5 percent in US Equity and 

17�5 percent in International Equities�

To match the long-term nature of pension obligations, the SBI maintains a strategic asset allocation 

for the funds that includes allocations to public equity, fixed income, private markets, and cash 

equivalents�  The SBI’s long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building-block 

method�  Best estimates of future real rates of return were developed for each asset class using both 

long-term historical returns and long-term capital market expectations from a number of investment 

management and consulting organizations�  The asset class estimates and target allocations were then 

combined to produce a geometric, long-term expected real rate of return for the portfolio�  Inflation 

expectations were applied to derive the nominal rate of return for the portfolio� The current long-term 

asset allocation is summarized in the following table:

   SBI’s Long-term Expected
   Real Rate of Return
Asset Class Target Allocation (Geometric Mean)
Domestic equity 35�5% 5�10%
International equity 17�5% 5�30%
Fixed income 10�0% 0�75%
Treasuries 10�0% 0�50%
Private markets 25�0% 5�90%
Cash     2�0% 0�0%
 Total 100% 
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 e� Single discount rate

Projected benefit payments are discounted to their actuarial present values using a single discount 

rate�  The single discount rate reflects (1) the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan 

investments for the period in which assets are projected to be available to pay benefits, and (2) a tax-

exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligations bonds�  The fiduciary 

net position of SERF was projected to be available to make all future benefit payments of current 

plan members through fiscal year 2119� Therefore, the discount rate is the long-term expected rate of 

return on pension plan investments, which was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 

determine the total pension liability�  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 

7�50 percent� 

 f� Sensitivity of the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the 

discount rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using 

the current single discount rate of 7�50 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share 

of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-

point lower (6�50 percent) or one percentage-point higher (8�50 percent) than the current rate:

 1% Decrease in  Current 1% Increase in

 Discount Rate (6.50%) Discount Rate (7.50%) Discount Rate (8.50%)

 Authority’s proportionate  
 share of the net  
 pension liability $524,269 $225,096 ($23,250)

Additional information related to the plan is presented in Required Supplementary Information (RSI) 

following the Notes to the Financial Statements�

2� Minnesota State Retirement System-Unclassified Employees Retirement Fund (UER)

 a� Plan description and contributions

The MSRS-UER is a tax-deferred, defined contribution fund entirely composed of a single, multiple-

employer defined contribution plan�  Participation is limited to certain specified employees�  Minnesota 

Statutes, Section 352D�01, authorized creation of this plan�  The Authority’s Executive Director 

participates in the plan�

It is considered a money purchase plan, with participants vesting only to the extent of the value of 

their accounts (employee and employer contributions plus/minus investment gains/losses, less 

administrative expenses), but functions as a hybrid between a defined contribution plan and a defined 

benefit plan�

Minnesota Statutes, Section 352D�04, subdivision 2, requires a contribution rate of 6�0 percent of salary 

from participating employees�  The employer contribution rate is 6�25 percent of salary�  Employees of 

this plan also contribute to Social Security�
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Participants in this plan are eligible to apply for the balance in their account after termination of public 

service�  There is no minimum employment requirement to qualify for this lump-sum payment�  Since 

contributions made to this plan are not taxed, participants pay taxes when funds are withdrawn and may 

be subject to a 10�0 percent penalty if funds are withdrawn in a lump sum before the member reaches 

age 59½�  Monthly benefits are available to terminated participants at age 55 or later, regardless of the 

individual’s length of service�  Participants age 55 or older may also apply for a portion of their account 

balance as a lump-sum payment and the remainder in lifetime, monthly benefits�

Retirement and disability benefits are available to some participants through conversion, at the 

participant’s option, to the General Plan provided the employee has at least ten years of allowable 

service in this plan and/or the General Plan if hired prior to July 1, 2010, or has no more than seven years 

of service if hired after June 30, 2010�

Employer contributions to MSRS-UEP which equaled the required contributions are:

 Year Contributions

 2018 $6,143

 2019 $9,920

 2020 $10,939

B. Risk management

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction 

of assets; errors and omission; work related injuries; and natural disasters� The Authority purchased 

insurance policies for the following exposures with the deductible or the amount of risk retention 

indicated in parenthesis:  general liability ($1,000 per claim for employee benefits only), excess liability 

(none), automobile/garage keepers liability ($2,500 comprehensive deductible and $500 collision 

deductible per auto), crime insurance ($10,000), workers compensation (none), public officials and 

employee liability insurance ($25,000), cyber/privacy liability ($10,000 per claim), property ($100,000), 

and terrorism insurance (none)�

The Authority had an Owner Controlled Insurance Program (OCIP) during construction of the stadium 

whereby the construction manager, all subcontractors and all direct contractors enrolled in this 

program for liability insurance coverage�  This policy has a prefunded insurance loss reserve for claim 

and service fee expenses�  

Within the past three fiscal years, settled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage�

C. Operating leases

The Authority entered into two separate agreements to lease a total of 1,085 parking spaces for each 

of the ten Minnesota Vikings home games�  The lease periods were from July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020�  

Total rent expense for the parking spaces was $513,731�
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On November 20, 2015, the Authority entered into a lease agreement to lease 35,860 square feet of 

space at a location adjacent to U�S� Bank Stadium plaza area� The lease period began March 1, 2016 and 

will expire upon the expiration of the stadium use agreement� The lease agreement requires an annual 

base rent amount of $282,398, and provides for a fair market adjustment of the base rent on March 31, 

2031, March 31, 2036, March 31, 2041, and March 31, 2046, subject to the terms of the agreement and 

agreement of the Authority�  Rent expenses were $282,398 for the year ended June 30, 2020�

Future rent expense for the lease agreement is as follows: 

 Fiscal Year(s) Rent Expense

 2021 $282,398

 2022 $282,398

 2023 $282,398

 2024 $282,398

 2025 $282,398

 2026 - 2030 $1,411,988

 2031 – 2035 $1,411,988

 2036 – 2040 $1,411,988

 2041 – 2045 $1,411,988

 2046 $188,008

In accordance with the lease agreement, the landlord has the option to terminate the lease on the 

annual anniversary of the commencement date, March 1, 2016� If the landlord elects to terminate the 

lease, the landlord must reimburse the Authority for unamortized improvement costs, as defined by 

the lease agreement�  

D.  Agreements

1� Use agreement and football playing agreement

Effective November 22, 2013 the Authority and Minnesota Vikings Football Stadium, LLC entered into 

a long-term amended and restated stadium use agreement that grants the Team the right to use the 

stadium�  The initial term of the agreement was from date of substantial completion of the stadium to the 

30th National Football League (NFL) football season played by the Team in the stadium�  As payment 

for its occupancy and use of the stadium, the Team is obligated to pay a use fee (operating payment) 

as defined in the agreement�  This agreement also requires the Authority to have sole responsibility 

for the operation, direction, maintenance, supervision, and management of the stadium and  

stadium infrastructure�

On February 19, 2016 the Authority entered into the Second Amended and Restated Stadium Use 

Agreement to incorporate the amendments into this agreement�  This amended and restated use 

agreement superseded and replaced the prior agreements�
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In addition to the use agreement the Authority and the Team entered into a long-term football playing 

agreement concerning the use of the stadium whereby the Team agreed to play home games during 

the NFL season at the stadium�  This agreement terminates in conjunction with the termination of the 

amended and restated use agreement�

2� Parking agreement

On February 10, 2014 the Authority entered into a parking agreement with Ryan Companies US, Inc� 

(Ryan) and the city of Minneapolis whereby the Authority owns the Downtown East Parking Ramp 

and the Mills Fleet Farm Parking Garage and Ryan operates the parking facilities for the first ten years�  

Since December 31, 2015 Ryan has managed both parking facilities�  The revenues and expenses from 

the parking operation are not included in the Authority’s statement of revenues, expenses and changes 

in net position�  

3� Management and pre-opening services agreement

Effective August 22, 2014 the Authority entered into a management and pre-opening services 

agreement with a third party management company, SMG now known as ASM Global, who is 

responsible for managing, operating, maintaining and marketing U�S� Bank Stadium for ten years 

commencing with the stadium opening (operating period)�  The Authority has the option to extend 

the agreement for an additional five years�  ASM Global is required to operate in accordance with 

certain policies of the Authority� 

The agreement required ASM Global to pay the Authority $2,750,000 for capital investment costs by 

April 1, 2016�  On June 30, 2017 ASM Global contributed an additional $250,000 for event marketing�  

The unamortized capital investment will be paid to ASM Global upon early termination of the agreement�  

The capital investment amount was deferred and will be recognized as revenue over the term of the 

agreement�  The unamortized capital investment balance at June 30, 2020 was $1,747,836�

The agreement also required ASM Global to guarantee $6,750,000, increased by 2�0 percent each 

year, of net operating income (NOI) to the Authority for the first year of operations�  In addition to the 

NOI guarantee of $6,750,000, the Authority is entitled to a pro rata share of NOI above $7,250,000, as 

defined by the agreement�  The NOI guarantee for the fourth year of operations was $7,163,154�  The 

agreement assigns ASM Global agent rights to certain bank accounts held by the Authority in relation 

to stadium operations and payroll�  All stadium operating revenues are required to be deposited to the 

stadium operating bank account�  

4� Food and beverage, catering and concession agreement

The Authority entered into a food and beverage, catering and concession agreement with Aramark 

Sports and Entertainment Services, LLC for the provision of premium food and beverage operations, 

catering services and concession services in the suites, the clubs, and the concession stands in the 

concourses and on the plaza�  The ten-year agreement has a designated commission option which 

established the commission rates that would be paid by Aramark and it provided an option for the 

Minnesota Vikings to contribute to the required $10 million capital investment�  The Minnesota Vikings 
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chose the option to contribute $6�5 million to the capital investment, Aramark then contributed $3�5 

million in February 2016 to the capital investment�  This capital investment was a stadium project funding 

source for the purchase of concession equipment�  The total capital investment of $10 million was 

deferred and will be recognized as revenue over the 10-year term of the agreement� The unamortized 

capital investment will be paid to the Minnesota Vikings and Aramark upon early termination of this 

agreement�  The unamortized capital investment balance at June 30, 2020 was $6,088,710�

In addition to payment of commissions for food and beverage, catering and concession sales, Aramark 

is required to pay 2�50 percent of gross receipts to the Authority for deposit into the concession capital 

reserve account for future purchases�

5� Commemorative bricks program

The first $1,600,000 of net proceeds from the sale of commemorative bricks has been restricted by 

the stadium development agreement for plaza improvements�  Any net proceeds from the sale of 

commemorative bricks in excess of $1,600,000 are designated to the stadium plaza improvements 

budget�  Based on this restriction, cash related to the sale of commemorative bricks is shown as 

restricted assets of $240,852 on the statement of net position for the year ended June 30, 2020�  

E. Construction commitments and contingencies

The Authority had one construction contract that had commitments at June 30, 2020:

  Spent to Date Remaining Commitment

Construction management services $13,389,518 $8,175,319

The Authority did not accrue a liability for the outstanding issues and claims related to the design 

and construction of U�S� Bank Stadium as it is not probable that a liability had been incurred as of  

June 30, 2020 and the amount of the liability could not be reasonably estimated�  

The Authority is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims that arise in the ordinary 

course of its operations�  Although the outcome of these matters is not presently determinable, in the 

opinion of the Authority’s management, the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse 

effect on the Authority’s financial condition�
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Schedule of the Authority’s Share of Net Pension Liability
Minnesota State Retirement System - State Employees Retirement Fund

Fiscal Year

Authority's 
Proportion 

of the
 Net Pension 

Liability

Authority's 
Proportionate  

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability

Authority's  
Covered Payroll

Authority's 
Proportionate 

Share of the Net 
Pension Liability  
as a Percentage  
of its Covered 

Payroll

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position as 
a Percentage of 
the Total Pension 

Liability

2014 0�051%  $827,002  $1,303,478 63�45% 87�64%

2015 0�033%  $507,998  $874,171 58�11% 88�32%

2016 0�021%  $2,603,765  $563,727 461�88% 47�51%

2017 0�014%  $1,038,507  $383,628 270�71% 62�73%

2018 0�012%  $162,375  $367,562 44�18% 90�56%

2019 0�016%  $225,096  $494,074 45�56% 90�73%

The measurement date is June 30 of each year�

1  This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years� Additional years will be displayed as they become available�

2 The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30�

Schedule of Authority’s Contributions
Minnesota State Retirement System - State Employees Retirement Fund

Fiscal Year

Contractually 
Required 

Contribution

Contributions in 
Relation to the 
Contractually

Required 
Contribution

Contribution
Deficiency (excess)

Authority’s
Covered Payroll

Contributions as  
a Percentage of 
Covered Payroll

2014  $48,519  $48,519  $-    $928,080 5�23%

2015  $40,403  $40,403  $-    $735,734 5�49%

2017  $36,066  $36,066  $-    $638,223 5�65%

2018  $20,216  $20,216  $-    $367,562 5�50%

2019  $29,089  $29,089  $-    $494,074 5�89%

2020  $23,805  $23,805  $-    $380,884 6�25%

1 This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years�  Additional years will be displayed as they become available�

2 The amounts presented for 2014 and 2015 were determined as of December 31�

3 The amounts presented for 2017 are for the 18-month fiscal period from January 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017�

4 The amounts presented for 2018, 2019, and 2020 were determined as of June 30� 
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STATISTICAL SECTION

The Statistical Section provides financial statement users with 

additional historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in 

using the information in the financial statements, including the 

accompanying notes� 
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LIST OF STATISTICAL TABLES

1.0 FINANCIAL TRENDS

This information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing how the Authority’s 

financial position has changed over time�  There are two tables presented in this section�

 Table 1�1 Net Position by Component

 Table 1�2 Changes in Net Position

2.0 REVENUE CAPACITY

This information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the factors affecting the 

Authority’s ability to generate its own-source revenues� Only one table is presented in this section�

 Table 2�1 User Fee Revenues by Source

3.0 DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

This information is intended to assist users in understanding the socioeconomic environment within 

which the Authority operates and to provide information that facilitates comparisons of financial 

statement information over time� There are two tables presented in this section�

 Table 3�1 Demographic and Economic Statistics

 Table 3�2 Principal Employers in Minnesota

4.0 OPERATING INFORMATION

This information is intended to provide contextual information about the Authority’s operations and 

resources to assist readers in using financial statement information to understand and assess the 

Authority’s employment� There is one table presented in this section�

 Table 4�1 Full-Time Employees by Department
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Unaudited

Source:  Authority Finance department

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY   Table 1.1
Net Position by Component  
Last Eight Fiscal Years

Fiscal 
Period

Investment in
Capital Assets Restricted Unrestricted

Total
Net Position

2020  $953,867,695  $21,845,565  $4,838,875  $980,552,135 

2019  1,000,408,761  3,845,171  3,492,274  1,007,746,206 

2018  1,044,474,586  5,993,494  (628,667)  1,049,839,413 

2017  1,090,575,542  -  1,690,775  1,092,266,317 

2015  907,139,710  -  7,910,770  915,050,480 

2014  389,507,399  -  16,692,006  406,199,405 

2013  52,256,276  -  24,144,345  76,400,621 

2012  15,497,844  -  12,080,223  27,578,067 

1  The Authority began operations on August 1, 2012 and net position for 2012 is reported as of December 31, 2012, for the five-
month period then ended�

2  Net position for 2013, 2014, and 2015 is reported as of December 31 of each year�

3  The Authority changed its year-end from December 31 to June 30 and net position for 2017 is reported as of June 30, 2017, 
for the 18-month fiscal period then ended�



50

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
Changes in Net Position 
For the Last Eight Fiscal Years

Table 1.2

2020 2019 2018 2017 2015 2014 2013 2012

Operating revenues:

    Operating payments from  
State of Minnesota and  
Minnesota Vikings  $15,907,958  $15,569,573  $15,146,301  $20,910,210  $-  $-  $-  $- 

   Stadium operating revenues  14,142,738  30,897,106  29,656,584  23,589,302  -  -  -  - 

   Concessions  -  -  -  -  -  -  9,438,927  8,479,625 

   Admission tax  -  -  -  -  -  -  4,276,114  4,098,350 

   Rent  -  -  -  -  -  -  4,810,944  4,068,914 

   Charges for services  -  -  -  -  -  13,067  1,501,944  908,813 

   Other  2,022,141  1,390,377  94,107  1,779,062  44,993  45,816  516,027  336,159 

    Parking operations and  
related revenues -  -  -  -  524,455  405,166  -  - 

     Total operating revenues  32,072,837  47,857,056  44,896,992  46,278,574  569,448  464,049  20,543,956  17,891,861 

Operating expenses:

   Concession costs  -  -  -  -  -  221,220  5,072,396  4,101,323 

    Tenants share of  
concession receipts  -  -  -  -  -  -  1,244,224  1,309,240 

   Facilities cost credit  -  -  -  -  -  -  3,653,703  3,704,030 

   Personal services  660,059  361,383  560,909  1,611,570  1,057,640  1,841,609  2,623,548  1,085,418 

   Professional services  1,385,177  1,224,722  1,795,052  2,797,081  865,679  616,112  981,614  922,956 

   Contractual services  -  -  -  -  -  68,521  1,711,276  1,137,579 

    Supplies, repairs  
and maintenance  920,323  910,439  1,268,687  1,256,214  273,015  214,056  685,645  470,478 

   Utilities  -  -  -  -  -  96,842  3,148,122  1,436,919 

   Rent  800,699  796,939  746,505  1,432,607  171,462  172,210  -  - 

   Insurance  -  -  -  -  58,518  113,373  856,543  367,127 

   Parking operations   -  -  -  -  235,013  719,573  -  - 

   Event costs  -  -  -  -  -  -  673,132  388,508 

   Miscellaneous/other  311,155  803,290  3,203,500  901,419  294,954  203,832  327,711  303,098 

   Stadium operating expenses  25,106,754  44,338,597  37,417,765  32,143,313  -  -  -  - 

   Depreciation  50,795,764  50,675,172  50,459,104  51,313,184  318,463  292,293  4,250,905  1,898,121 

     Total operating expenses  79,979,931  99,110,542  95,451,522  91,455,388  3,274,744  4,559,641  25,228,819  17,124,797 

      Total operating income (loss)  (47,907,094)  (51,253,486)  (50,554,530)  (45,176,814)  (2,705,296)  (4,095,592)  (4,684,863)  767,064 

Nonoperating revenues  
(expenses)

 (8,052,434)  2,088,342  1,664,664  (1,652,928)  (327,314)  1,765,515  993,582  70,645 

      Income (loss) before capital 
contributions

 (55,959,528)  (49,165,144)  (48,889,866)  (46,829,742)  (3,032,610)  (2,330,077)  (3,691,281)  837,709 

Capital contributions  28,765,457  7,071,937  6,462,962  224,045,579  511,883,685  334,047,793  52,513,835  2,546,938 

Change in net position  $(27,194,071) ($42,093,207) ($42,426,904)  $177,215,837  $508,851,075  $331,717,716  $48,822,554  $3,384,647 

1  The Authority began operations on August 1, 2012 and net position for 2012 is reported as of December 31, 2012, for the five-
month period then ended�

2 Net position for 2013, 2014, and 2015 is reported as of December 31 of each year�

3  The Authority changed its year-end from December 31 to June 30 and net position for 2017 is reported as of June 30, 2017, 
for the 18-month fiscal period then ended�

Unaudited

Source:  Authority Finance department
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Unaudited

Source:  Authority Finance department

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
User Fee Revenues by Source 
For the Last Eight Fiscal Years 

Table 2.1

Fiscal 
Period

Operating 
Payments

Stadium 
Operating 
Revenues Concessions  

Admission 
Tax Rent

Parking 
Operations

Charges for 
Services Other

2020  $15,907,958  $14,142,738  $-  $-  $-  $-  $-  $2,022,141 

2019  15,569,573  30,897,106  -    -    -    -    -    1,390,377 

2018  15,146,301  29,656,584  -    -    -    -    -    94,107 

2017  20,910,210  23,589,302  -    -    -    -    -    1,779,062 

2015  -    -    -    -    -    524,455  -    44,993 

2014  -    -    -    -    -    405,166  13,067  45,816 

2013  -    -    9,438,927  4,276,114  4,810,944  -    1,501,944  516,027 

2012  -    -    8,479,625  4,098,350  4,068,914  -    908,813  336,159 

1  The Authority began operations on August 1, 2012 and revenues by source for 2012 are reported as of December 31, 2012, for the 
five-month period then ended�

2  Revenues by source for 2013, 2014, and 2015 are reported as of December 31 of each year� 

3  The Authority changed its year-end from December 31 to June 30 and revenues by source for 2017 are reported as of  
June 30, 2017, for the 18-month fiscal period then ended�

4  Operating payments include payments from the State of Minnesota and the Minnesota Vikings for U�S� Bank Stadium�

5  Stadium operating revenues include all revenues from U�S� Bank Stadium operations�

6 Concessions include Metrodome food and beverage concession revenues�

7  Admission tax includes 10% tax assessed on all ticket sales at Metrodome�

8  Rent includes 9�5% rental fee on Minnesota Vikings ticket sales and $500 hourly rental fees for other Metrodome events�
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Unaudited

Source:  Metropolitan Council Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 12/31/2019-Minneapolis/St� Paul Business Journal  
July 13, 2019 and Business Journal Book of Lists, December 25, 2010�

Note: Available list covers employment for entire State of Minnesota�
 Walmart was not included because it declined to provide data for 2019�

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Table 3.1

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
Principal Employers in Minnesota
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Table 3.2

Fiscal Year Population (1,3)
Personal Income 
(In Millions) (1,3)

Per Capita 
Income (1,3)

Unemployment 
Rate (2)

2010  3,355,763  $153,074  $45,615 7�3%

2011  3,389,448  163,306  48,181 6�3%

2012  3,422,542  173,992  50,837 5�5%

2013  3,458,513  175,414  50,719 4�8%

2014  3,491,838  186,385  53,377 4�0%

2015  3,518,252  195,613  55,599 3�5%

2016  3,551,036  201,427  56,723 3�6%

2017  3,600,618  215,087  59,736 3�3%

2018  3,614,162  227,292  62,889 2�8%

2019  3,614,162  227,292  62,889 3�0%

Number of Minnesota Only Employees in thousands (except percentage)

2019 2010

Employer Employees Rank

Percentage  
of Total

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage  
of Total

Employment

State of Minnesota 57 1 2�81% 54 1 3�12%

Mayo Clinic 43 2 2�12% 38 2 2�19%

United States Federal Gov't 35 3 1�72% 32 3 1�85%

Fairview Health Services 34 4 1�67% 21 7 1�21%

Allina Health System 29 5 1�43% 23 6 1�33%

Target Corporation 29 6 1�43% 28 4 1�62%

University of Minnesota 26 7 1�28% 25 5 1�44%

HealthPartners Inc� 25 8 1�23% - - -

United Health Group, Inc� 19 9 0�94% - - -

Wells Fargo Minnesota 18 10 0�89% 20 9 1�15%

Wal-Mart stores, Inc� - - - 21 8 1�21%

3M Co� - - - 14 10 0�81%

     Total 315 15�52% 276 15�93%

Unaudited

Sources:
1 U�S� Commerce Department and Bureau of Economic Analysis for the Minneapolis-St� Paul Metropolitan Statistical Area�
2 State of Minnesota, Department of Employment and Economic Development (Seven-county area)
3 2019 data not available at time of report�
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Unaudited

Source: Authority Finance department

MINNESOTA SPORTS FACILITIES AUTHORITY
Full-Time Employees by Department
Last Eight Fiscal Years

Table 4.1

Fiscal  
Year Administrative

Building  
Maintenance Security Total

2020 4 - - 4
2019 4 - - 4
2018 5 - - 5
2017 5 - - 5
2015 8 - - 8
2014 10 - - 10
2013 8 11 2 21
2012 7 11 2 20

1  The Authority began operations on August 1, 2012 and full-time employees by department for 2012 are reported as of 
December 31, 2012, for the five-month period then ended�

2  Employees by department for 2013, 2014, and 2015 are reported as of December 31 of each year�

3  The Authority changed its year end from December 31 to June 30 and employees by department for 2017 are reported 
as of June 30, 2017 for the 18-month fiscal period then ended�
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